

Assembly Bill 400

Date published:
 August 15, 1967

CHAPTER 110, LAWS OF 1967

AN ACT to amend and revise chapter 20 and to make divers other changes in the statutes and session laws, relating to state finances and appropriations, constituting the segregated funds budget bill of the 1967 legislature and making appropriations.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. The amounts in the summaries and schedules in section 20.005 of the statutes, as they affect 1967-69 segregated funds appropriations, are created to read:

SEGREGATED FUNDS BUDGET SUMMARY

	1967-68	1968-69
Conservation fund expenditures	\$ 21,232,600	\$ 21,580,600
Highway fund expenditures	273,857,500	255,491,300
Other funds expenditures	127,972,500	143,823,700
	<hr/>	<hr/>
Total segregated funds	\$423,062,600	\$420,895,600

SEGREGATED FUNDS BUDGET SCHEDULE

Statute, agency and purpose	Source	Type	1967-68	1968-69
20.280 Conservation commission				
(1) Fish and game				
(u) General program opns.	SEG	A	9,576,200	9,706,800
(ue) Wild duck and goose damage	SEG	A	10,000	10,000
(uf) Bear and deer damage	SEG	S	180,000	180,000
(ug) Carp control research	SEG	C	90,000	—0—
(um) Water regulatory structures	SEG	A	6,000	6,000
(un) Montello dam repair	SEG	C	60,000	—0—
(up) Topographic mapping	SEG	A	5,000	5,000
(v) Taxes and assessments	SEG	S	10,000	10,000
(vc) Aids in lieu of taxes	SEG	S	101,300	104,000
(vm) County conservation aids	SEG	A	180,000	180,000
(vn) Water access aids	SEG	A	60,000	60,000
(w) Gifts and donations	SEG	C	20,000	20,000
(x) Boat registration and enforcement ..	SEG	C	140,800	220,000
(xm) Boat safety aids	SEG	C	100,000	100,000

Statute, agency and purpose	Source	Type	1967-68	1968-69
(zm) Federal aids	SEG	C	1,154,000	1,213,000
Segregated fund revenue			/11,693,300/	/11,814,800/
(1) Program total			(11,693,300)	(11,814,800)
(2) Forestry				
(u) General program opns.	SEG	A	5,808,000	5,945,700
(v) Taxes and assessments	SEG	S	10,000	10,000
(vc) Aids in lieu of taxes	SEG	S	118,700	119,900
(vm) County forest aids	SEG	S	223,200	223,200
(w) Gifts and donations	SEG	C	20,000	20,000
(z) Reforestation fund	SEG	C	260,000	260,000
(zm) Federal aid	SEG	C	999,200	999,200
Segregated fund revenue			/7,439,100/	/7,578,000/
(2) Program total			(7,439,100)	(7,578,000)
(3) State parks				
(a) General program opns.	GPR	A	95,500	95,500
(u) General program opns.	SEG	A	925,700	1,009,300
(v) Taxes and assessments	SEG	S	10,000	10,000
(w) Gifts and donations	SEG	C	10,000	10,000
(zm) Federal aid	SEG	C	286,000	286,000
General purpose revenue			/95,500/	/95,500/
Segregated fund revenue			/1,231,700/	/1,315,300/
(3) Program total			(1,327,200)	(1,410,800)
(4) Information, education and vacation services				
(u) General program opns.	SEG	A	286,600	290,600
(z) Advertising Wis.; highway fund	SEG	A	300,000	300,000
Segregated fund revenue			/586,600/	/590,600/
(4) Program total			(586,600)	(590,600)
(9) General approp. and prov.				
(wc) Car pool opns.	SEG	C	17,000	17,000
(xf) Canceled drafts	SEG	C	10,000	10,000
(xm) Insurance loss	SEG	C	15,000	15,000
(zm) Federal aid	SEG	C	310,900	310,900
(zn) Federal aid for local assist.	SEG	C	489,000	489,000
Segregated fund revenue			/841,900/	/841,900/
(9) Program total			(841,900)	(841,900)
General purpose revenue			/95,500/	/95,500/
Segregated fund revenue			/21,792,600/	/22,140,600/
20.280 TOTAL			[21,888,100]	[22,236,100]
20.282 Conservation warden pension fund				
(1) Operations and benefits				
(u) General program opns.	SEG	S	156,900	171,900
Segregated fund revenue			/156,900/	/171,900/
20.282 TOTAL			[156,900]	[171,900]
20.365 Exposition department				
(1) Exposition center				
(um) Rental payments	SEG	S	-0-	-0-
Segregated fund revenue			/-0-/	/-0-/
(1) Program total			(-0-)	(-0-)
(3) Olympic ice rink				
(um) Rental payments	SEG	S	33,600	33,600
Segregated fund revenue			/33,600/	/33,600/
(3) Program total			(33,600)	(33,600)
Segregated fund revenue			/33,600/	/33,600/
20.365 TOTAL			[33,600]	[33,600]
20.408 Group insurance board				
(1) Group health and life ins.				
(u) Premium payments	SEG	C	8,710,600	10,018,100
Segregated fund revenue			/8,710,600/	/10,018,100/
20.408 TOTAL			[8,710,600]	[10,018,100]
20.420 Highway commission				
(1) State highway facilities				
(u) General program opns.	SEG	A	6,531,200	6,724,100
(v) STH allot., counties	SEG	S	7,967,000	7,967,000
(vg) Fire protection	SEG	S	10,000	10,000
(vm) Municipal streets	SEG	C	3,800,000	3,800,000
(w) Roadside improvement	SEG	C	200,000	200,000
(wc) County reimbursement	SEG	S	100	100
(wg) Outdoor advertising	SEG	C	10,000	10,000
(x) State fund for constr. and maintenance	SEG	C	10,700,000	10,700,000

Statute, agency and purpose	Source	Type	1967-68	1968-69
(xa) Highway improvement	SEG	C	2,352,000	2,400,000
(xb) State fund supplemental	SEG	C	22,907,800	23,040,200
(xd) Additional fuel tax	SEG	C	32,571,400	34,285,700
(xg) Investment and misc. income	SEG	C	1,350,000	1,350,000
(y) Federal aid	SEG	C	55,000,000	49,000,000
(z) Special funds	SEG	C	32,100,000	13,700,000
Segregated fund revenue			/175,499,500/	/153,187,100/
(1) Program total			(175,499,500)	(153,187,100)
(2) Special roads and serv.				
(u) General program opns.	SEG	A	71,000	72,900
(v) State park and forest roads	SEG	C	700,000	700,000
(w) Institution roads	SEG	C	200,000	200,000
(x) Public access roads	SEG	C	100,000	100,000
(y) Federal aid defense and forest roads and miscellaneous	SEG	C	175,000	175,000
(z) Topographic maps	SEG	A	105,000	105,000
Segregated fund revenue			/1,351,000/	/1,352,900/
(2) Program total			(1,351,000)	(1,352,900)
(3) Aids and assist. to local government				
(u) General program opns.	SEG	A	496,900	510,300
(ug) Bridge construction	SEG	C	200,000	200,000
(um) Bridge maint. and oper.	SEG	C	225,000	225,000
(v) RR grade crossing protection	SEG	C	400,000	400,000
(w) STH allotment; county bonds	SEG	S	83,000	83,000
(x) Aids to localities	SEG	S	19,814,800	20,204,200
(xc) Aids to localities, motor vehicle fees	SEG	C	784,000	800,000
(xg) Aids, supplemental	SEG	C	32,982,100	35,510,200
(xm) Additional fuel tax	SEG	C	16,285,700	17,142,900
(y) Federal aid	SEG	C	5,000,000	5,000,000
(z) Special funds	SEG	C	5,000,000	5,000,000
Segregated fund revenue			/81,271,500/	/85,075,600/
(3) Program total			(81,271,500)	(85,075,600)
(4) Driver education				
(u) General operations	SEG	C	1,432,500	1,587,700
Less: Distributed to other depart- ments			-1,432,500	-1,587,700
(v) Driver training reimbursement	SEG	C	15,000	15,000
Segregated fund revenue			/15,000/	/15,000/
(4) Program total			(15,000)	(15,000)
Segregated fund revenue			/258,137,000/	/239,630,600/
20.420 TOTAL			[258,137,000]	[239,630,600]
20.440 Industrial commission				
(1) Services to labor and industry				
(u) Unemployment admin. fund, federal funds	SEG	C	10,030,700	10,307,800
(v) Unemployment admin. fund, state money	SEG	C	429,200	7,000
(x) Employment security bldg. projects	SEG	C	77,700	-0-
Segregated fund revenue			/10,537,600/	/10,314,800/
(1) Program total			(10,537,600)	(10,314,800)
(7) Segregated funds				
(u) Death benefit fund	SEG	C	350,000	350,000
(v) Injuries indemnity fund	SEG	C	25,000	25,000
Segregated fund revenue			/375,000/	/375,000/
(7) Program total			(375,000)	(375,000)
Segregated fund revenue			/10,912,600/	/10,689,800/
20.440 TOTAL			[10,912,600]	[10,689,800]
20.460 Insurance department				
(3) State property insurance fund				
(u) Administration	SEG	A	47,900	53,700
(v) Insurance losses	SEG	C	481,000	489,000
Segregated fund revenue			/528,900/	/542,700/
(3) Program total			(528,900)	(542,700)
(4) State life insurance company				
(u) Administration	SEG	A	27,000	29,500
(v) Opns. and benefits	SEG	C	290,400	338,900
Segregated fund revenue			/317,400/	/368,400/
(4) Program total			(317,400)	(368,400)
(7) Workmen's comp. sec. fund				
(u) Mutual workmen's comp. sec. fund.	SEG	C	100	100
(v) Recip. workmen's comp. sec. fund.	SEG	C	100	100

Statute, agency and purpose	Source	Type	1967-68	1968-69
(w) Stock workmen's comp. sec. fund ...	SEG	C	400	400
Segregated fund revenue			/600/	/600/
(7) Program total			(600)	(600)
Segregated fund revenue			/846,900/	/911,700/
20.460 TOTAL			[846,900]	[911,700]
20.520 Legislative council				
(4) Highway problems study				
(u) Highway fund	SEG	B	22,500	22,700
Segregated fund revenue			/22,500/	/22,700/
(4) Program total			(22,500)	(22,700)
20.548 Milwaukee teachers retirement fund				
(1) Milwaukee teachers retirement				
(u) Administration	SEG	C	63,000	65,000
(v) Operations and benefits	SEG	C	3,022,200	3,164,000
Segregated fund revenue			/3,085,200/	/3,229,000/
20.548 TOTAL			[3,085,200]	[3,229,000]
20.560 Motor vehicle department				
(1) Registration and licensing				
(u) General program opns.	SEG	A	3,573,300	3,432,700
(v) Filing fees	SEG	S	150,000	150,000
Segregated fund revenue			/3,723,300/	/3,582,700/
(1) Program total			(3,723,300)	(3,582,700)
(2) Driver control				
(u) General program opns.	SEG	A	3,420,700	3,426,100
Segregated fund revenue			/3,420,700/	/3,426,100/
(2) Program total			(3,420,700)	(3,426,100)
(3) Enforcement and inspection				
(u) General program opns.	SEG	A	5,764,100	5,861,600
(y) Rental payments	SEG	S	84,600	84,600
Segregated fund revenue			/5,848,700/	/5,946,200/
(3) Program total			(5,848,700)	(5,946,200)
Segregated fund revenue			/12,992,700/	/12,955,000/
20.560 TOTAL			[12,992,700]	[12,955,000]
20.640 Public employees soc. sec. fund				
(1) Admin. and operations				
(u) Payment to U.S. Treas.	SEG	C	70,302,400	80,734,200
Segregated fund revenue			/70,302,400/	/80,734,200/
20.640 TOTAL			[70,302,400]	[80,734,200]
20.650 Public instruction department				
(2) Financial assistance to local schools				
(u) School library aids	SEG	C	920,000	960,000
(v) Driver education	SEG	C	1,166,000	1,292,200
Segregated fund revenue			/2,086,000/	/2,252,200/
(2) Program total			(2,086,000)	(2,252,200)
20.650 TOTAL			[2,086,000]	[2,252,200]
20.660 Public service commission				
(1) Regul. of public services				
(u) Motor transportation	SEG	A	495,600	508,200
Segregated fund revenue			/495,600/	/508,200/
20.660 TOTAL			[495,600]	[508,200]
20.760 State colleges				
(1) Instruction				
(u) Driver education	SEG	A	28,500	28,500
Segregated fund revenue			/28,500/	/28,500/
(1) Program total			(28,500)	(28,500)
20.800 Taxation, department of				
(1) Admin. of prop. & excise tax laws				
(u) Motor fuel tax admin.	SEG	A	477,200	487,100
Segregated fund revenue			/477,200/	/487,100/
(1) Program total			(477,200)	(487,100)
20.800 TOTAL			[477,200]	[487,100]
20.810 Teachers' retirement board				
(1) State teachers' retirement				
(u) Administration	SEG	A	334,700	340,200
(v) Opns. and benefits	SEG	C	16,057,000	19,633,000
Segregated fund revenue			/16,391,700/	/19,973,200/
20.810 TOTAL			[16,391,700]	[19,973,200]

20.830	University of Wisconsin				
(1)	Educational, general and related services				
(x)	Univ. trust fund, inc.	SEG		600,000	600,000
	Segregated fund revenue			/600,000/	/600,000/
	(1) Program total			(600,000)	(600,000)
	20.830 TOTAL			[600,000]	[600,000]
20.840	Veterans affairs department				
(2)	Loans and aids to veterans				
(u)	Admin. of loans and aids to veterans	SEG	A	565,900	589,300
(um)	Veterans aids	SEG	S	310,000	370,000
(v)	Opn. of memorial hall	SEG	A	15,800	9,200
(vm)	Veterans memorial comm.	SEG	A	300	300
(vn)	United Spanish war vets.	SEG	A	1,000	1,000
(w)	Payments to vets. organ. for claim service	SEG	S	20,000	20,000
	Segregated fund revenue			/913,000/	/989,800/
	20.840 TOTAL			[913,000]	[989,800]
20.850	Vocational, technical and adult education				
(1)	Vocational, technical and adult educ. for youth and adults				
(u)	Driver education	SEG	C	238,000	267,000
	Segregated fund revenue			/238,000/	/267,000/
	(1) Program total			(238,000)	(267,000)
20.890	Wisconsin retirement fund				
(1)	Munic. and state employe ret.				
(u)	Administration	SEG	A	390,100	402,900
(v)	Opns. & benefits	SEG	C	14,449,500	14,849,500
	Segregated fund revenue			/14,839,600/	/15,252,400/
	20.890 TOTAL			[14,839,600]	[15,252,400]

SECTION 2. 20.240 (1) (v) of the statutes, relating to the BUILDING COMMISSION, is amended to read:

20.240 (1) (v) A sum sufficient from the state building trust fund for payment of rentals by the state building commission for permanent improvements and the acquisition of all equipment therefor and for remodeling and purchase of land under ss. 14.86 and 14.89 on projects *or lands* designated and approved by the state building commission when the projects *or land acquisitions* are initiated and on projects *or lands* designated and approved by the state building commission after initiation thereof.

SECTION 3. 20.280 (1) (u) to (xm) and (9) (uc) of the statutes, relating to the CONSERVATION COMMISSION, are repealed.

SECTION 4. 20.280 (1) (u) to (xm), (3) (a) and (9) (zm) and (zn) of the statutes are created to read:

20.280 (1) (u) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for fish and game operations under ss. 23.09 and 23.27.

(ue) *Wild duck and goose damage.* The amounts in the schedule for the payment of wild duck and goose damage claims under s. 29.594 (1) and (3).

(uf) *Bear and deer damage.* A sum sufficient to pay 80% of the costs of bear and deer damage claims under s. 29.595.

(ug) *Carp control research.* As a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule for carp control research under s. 23.093.

(um) *Water regulatory structures.* As a transfer to the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for the conservation fund's share of the cost of maintaining water regulatory structures in central Wisconsin by the department of resource development.

(un) *Montello dam repair.* As a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule for the repair of the Montello dam on the Fox river under s. 30.24 (2).

(up) *Topographic mapping.* As a transfer to the general fund, the

amounts in the schedule for the conservation fund's share of topographic mapping.

(vm) *County conservation aids.* The amounts in the schedule for county fish and game projects or county bounty payments under s. 23.09 (18).

(vn) *Water access aids.* The amounts in the schedule for public water access aids to local units of government under s. 23.09 (15).

(x) *Boat registration and enforcement.* All moneys received under ss. 30.50 to 30.55, for boat registration and enforcement under ss. 30.50 to 30.80, except s. 30.79 after deducting the amount appropriated under par. (xm).

(xm) *Boat safety aids.* From the moneys received under ss. 30.50 to 30.55, the amounts in the schedule for the payment of state aids under s. 30.79. Any portion of this appropriation which remains unexpended at the end of the fiscal year shall be added to the appropriation for the succeeding fiscal year.

(3) (a) *General program operations.* From the general fund, the amounts in the schedule for state park operations under ss. 23.09 (7) (d) 2 and 27.01.

(9) (zm) *Federal aids, grants and contracts.* All moneys received from the federal government to be used in accordance with s. 25.29. In this section, expenditure authority for federal aids, grants and contracts shall appear in the schedule of each applicable subsection as par. (zm).

(zn) *Federal aids, local assistance.* All moneys received from the federal government for aid to localities.

SECTION 5. 20.280 (9) (x) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.280 (9) (x) An imprest fund of ~~\$5,000~~ \$15,000 from the conservation fund may be established for the purpose of law enforcement ~~and~~, tree cone and seed purchases and for petty cash ~~and the payment of local purchases authorized under s. 16.52 (6) (b).~~ The operation and maintenance of such fund and the character of expenditures therefrom shall be pursuant to rules prescribed to the conservation commission by the director of the bureau of finance. ~~The rules for payment of local purchases authorized under s. 16.52 (6) (b) shall be in general conformity to the provisions of s. 20.979 (2) (a) relating to contingent funds of institutions.~~

SECTION 6. 20.280 (9) (y) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.280 (9) (y) *Revenues and appropriations.* All moneys received pursuant to the operation of programs under subs. (1) to (4) shall be credited to the program which generated them. Revenues which are assigned by law to a particular purpose shall be credited to and may be expended for that purpose. Unassigned revenue shall be credited to the general purpose segregated revenue of the proper program, but the expenditure from such revenue shall be limited to the appropriation of general purpose segregated revenue appearing in the schedule. Whenever the estimated unassigned revenues and available unassigned revenue appropriation balances are insufficient to cover the appropriations of general purpose segregated revenue under each program, the conservation commission shall so inform the department of administration and shall indicate the amounts which should be deducted from respective unassigned revenue appropriations to bring the appropriated amounts into agreement with the money available, and the department of administration shall adjust its records accordingly. Actual unassigned revenues in excess of estimated unassigned revenues appropriated may not be spent unless released by the board on government operations.

SECTION 8. 20.420 (intro.) and (1) (title) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

20.520 HIGHWAY COMMISSION. There is appropriated from the highway fund, or from other funds if indicated herein, to the highway commission the amounts indicated for the following programs. The state highway fund revenues collected by the motor vehicle department, department of taxation and public service commission in each fiscal year, after deducting the amount appropriated from the state highway fund by s. 20.130 (1) and the amounts paid from appropriations from the highway fund made by ss. 20.275 (1), 20.280 (4), 20.520 (4), 20.560, 20.660 (1), 20.800 (1) and 20.822 (1) are appropriated by this paragraph and shall be apportioned and distributed by the commission in the amounts and at the dates specified or, if no date is specified, at such times as the commission determines.

(1) STATE HIGHWAY FACILITIES.

SECTION 9. 20.420 (1) (v), (vg), (vm), (w), (wc), (x), (xb), (2) (v), (w), (x), (z), (3) (ug), (um), (ut), (v), (w) and (x) of the statutes are amended to read:

20.420 (1) (v) ~~The amounts required~~ *A sum sufficient* to meet the provisions of s. 84.03 (3), except for retiring bonds.

(vg) ~~Annually, there is appropriated~~ From the highway funds available to the state highway commission under sub. (1) (xb) a sum sufficient to reimburse towns for claims arising under s. 60.29 (2) (e) 2 on or after January 15, 1964.

(vm) *As a continuing appropriation* the amounts in the schedule for the improvement of connecting streets and state trunk highways in cities and villages and to supplement the appropriation made under par. (x) to carry out the purposes of s. 84.03 (9). These amounts may be used either independent of or in conjunction with any other funds which may be available for the same purposes.

(w) ~~Not to exceed \$200,000~~ *As a continuing appropriation the amounts in the schedule* for the execution of its functions under s. 84.04.

(wc) ~~An amount~~ *From moneys available to the state highway commission under sub. (1) (x), a sum sufficient annually* to reimburse any county for money it may contribute after July 1, 1966, for that portion of the capital improvement or construction project costs of the national system of interstate highways under s. 84.29 which is not paid by federal aid.

(x) *As a continuing appropriation* the amounts in the schedule for the execution of its functions under ss. 84.01 (7) and (21), 84.03 (6) and (9) and 84.07. From the appropriations credited to this paragraph an amount equal to the amount appropriated under s. ~~20.421 (2) (a)~~ *20.420 (1) (a)* shall be paid into the general fund as required for payments under such appropriation.

(xb) On June 30, 40% of the amount remaining from highway fund revenues collected by the motor vehicle department, department of taxation, and public service commission after deducting the amounts appropriated from the state highway fund by ~~ss.~~ s. 20.130 (1) ~~and 20.650 (2)~~; the amounts paid from the appropriations from the state highway fund made by ss. 20.275 (1), 20.280 (4) (z), 20.520 (4), 20.560, 20.660 (1) ~~and~~ 20.800 (1) ~~and 20.822 (1)~~ and the amounts allotted from the appropriations made by pars. (u), (v), (vm), (w), (x), (xa) and (xd) and subs. (2) (u) to (x) and (z) ~~and~~, (3) (u) to (um), (v) to (x), (xc) and (xm) ~~and (4) (u) and (v)~~ have been set aside, to supplement the appropriation made by par. (x).

(2) (v) ~~Not to exceed \$700,000~~ *As a continuing appropriation the amounts in the schedule* for the execution of its functions under s. 84.28.

(w) ~~Not to exceed \$100,000 for the fiscal year 1965-66 and \$140,000 for the fiscal year 1966-67, As a continuing appropriation the amounts in the schedule~~ for the purposes specified in s. 84.27.

(x) ~~As a continuing appropriation~~ the amounts in the schedule for providing public access roads to navigable waters. Such funds shall be used as provided for state park roads in s. 84.28.

(z) ~~Not to exceed \$105,000~~ ~~The amounts in the schedule~~ for the preparation of topographic maps of parts of Wisconsin in co-operation with the federal government. This appropriation shall not exceed amounts made available for this purpose by the federal government.

(3) (ug) ~~Not to exceed \$200,000~~ ~~As a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule~~ to pay the state's portion of the cost of bridges under ss. 84.11 and 84.12 not on the state trunk highway system or a connecting street.

(um) ~~Not to exceed \$225,000~~ ~~As a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule~~ for the purposes specified in s. 84.10.

(ut) ~~Any receipts available~~ ~~All moneys received~~ from other sources for the maintenance and operation of bridges specified in s. 84.10, to supplement the appropriation made by par. (um).

(v) ~~Not to exceed \$250,000~~ ~~As a continuing appropriation the amounts in the schedule~~ to pay the cost of crossing protection under s. 195.28.

(w) ~~The amounts necessary~~ ~~A sum sufficient~~ to retire bonds issued under ss. 67.13 and 67.14 in accordance with the allotment procedure specified in s. 84.03 (3).

(x) ~~The amounts necessary~~ ~~A sum sufficient~~ to meet the provisions of ss. 59.965 (11), 83.10, 86.31, 86.32, 86.33, 86.34 and 86.35.

SECTION 10. 20.420 (3) (xg) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.420 (3) (xg) *Aids to localities, supplemental.* On June 30, 60% of the amount described in sub. (1) (xb) is set aside to supplement the appropriation made by par. (x).

SECTION 11. 20.420 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

20.420 (4) DRIVER EDUCATION. (u) *General operations.* As a continuing appropriation the unencumbered balance remaining in s. 20.650 (2) (v), 1965 stats., on June 30, 1967, and an amount equal to the fees collected by the motor vehicle department from chauffeurs' licenses for the prior fiscal year, less the cost of administering such license fees, plus a sum equal to 50 cents collected on all operators' licenses under s. 343.21 (1) (a) and (b) and \$1 collected on all renewals of operators' licenses, except chauffeurs' licenses, under s. 343.21 (1) (c) and (d). From this appropriation funds shall be allotted for driver education in accordance with par. (v) and ss. 20.650 (2) (v), 20.760 (1) (u) and 20.850 (1) (u) and 46.03 (16). Such apportionment shall be made upon such reports in such form and containing such information as the state superintendent requires.

(v) *Driver education reimbursement.* From the sources specified in par. (u) an amount equal to \$25 for each student who successfully completes a driver education course under s. 46.03 (16) to reimburse the general fund for moneys expended under s. 20.670 (2) (a) for drivers education.

SECTION 11m. 20.530 (1) (a) 1. f of the statutes is amended to read:

20.530 (1) (a) 1. f. Any member of the legislature who has signified, by affidavit filed with the department of administration, the necessity of establishing a temporary residence at the state capital for the period of any regular or special legislative session shall be entitled to an allowance

of \$15 for expenses incurred for food and lodging, for each day that the is in Madison on legislative business, but not including any Saturday or Sunday unless he is in actual attendance on such day at a session of the legislature or a meeting of a standing committee of which he is a member. No such allowance shall be paid for any day during a recess of the legislature for 30 days or more; nor shall any such allowance be paid for any day following the 110th day on which the legislature meets in a regular or special session, not including days on which no roll call is taken in either house. The 110-day limitation on regular and special sessions shall be computed separately, and no days of one shall be applied against the limit of the other. Each member shall certify to the chief clerk of his house, as promptly as may be following the 1st of each month, the number of days during the previous calendar month on which he was in Madison on legislative business and for which he seeks the allowance provided by this paragraph. Such allowances shall be paid within one week after each calendar month; and shall be paid, upon the filing with such director, the chief clerk's affidavit stating the number of days in Madison on legislative business for all members of his house.

fm. Legislators shall be entitled to an expense allowance for ~~travel~~, postage, clerical assistance, ~~and toll calls, and other expenses~~ for each full calendar month during which the legislature is not actually in session. For assemblymen representing one county or less such expense allowance shall be at the rate of \$25 per month, but for assemblymen representing more than one county, it shall be at the rate of \$25 per month for the first county plus \$15 per month for each additional county in the district. For senators representing one county or less such expense allowance shall be at the rate of \$40 per month, but for senators representing more than one county, it shall be at the rate of \$40 per month for the first county plus \$20 per month for each additional county, or part thereof, in the district.

SECTION 12. 20.548 (intro.) and (1) (u) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

20.548 MILWAUKEE TEACHERS RETIREMENT FUND. There is appropriated to the board of trustees of the Milwaukee public school teachers annuity and retirement fund for the following program:

(1) (u) *Administration.* From the moneys received under s. 38.24, a sum sufficient to pay the costs of administration as certified under s. 38.24 (1) (d).

SECTION 12m. 20.548 (1) (v) of the statutes is created to read:

20.548 (1) (v) *Fund operations.* All moneys received under s. 38.24 for operations and benefits, including investment expenses, audit charges and the payment of annuities, death benefits and separation benefits as provided in said section.

SECTION 12y. 20.550 (45) (b) of the statutes, as created by chapter 43, laws of 1967, is amended to read:

20.550 (45) (b) A sum sufficient to pay the benefits authorized under ~~s. ss. 38.24 (12a) and 42.49 (10) and (16).~~

SECTION 14. 20.560 (9) (uc), (w) and (x) of the statutes, relating to the MOTOR VEHICLE DEPARTMENT, are repealed.

SECTION 15. 20.560 (9) (y) of the statutes is renumbered 20.560 (3) (y).

SECTION 16. 20.650 (2) (v) of the statutes, relating to the DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION, is repealed and recreated to read:

20.650 (2) (v) *Driver education.* All moneys received from the allocation made under s. 20.420 (4) (u) to be distributed to school districts

which operate driver education courses in accordance with s. 40.71 (12). The distribution shall be made to school districts upon such reports in such form and containing such information as the state superintendent requires. Of this amount such sums are allotted to the department as are necessary for the administration of the driver education program.

SECTION 17. 20.760 (1) (u) of the statutes, relating to the STATE COLLEGES, is created to read:

20.760 (1) (u) *Driver education teachers.* The amounts in the schedule from the appropriation made by s. 20.420 (4) (u) for the purpose of providing driver education teacher training.

SECTION 18. 20.810 (1) (u) of the statutes, relating to the STATE TEACHERS' RETIREMENT BOARD, is amended to read:

20.810 (1) (u) *Administration.* From the moneys received by the state teachers' retirement system under ss. 42.20 to 42.54, the amounts in the schedule for administration, other than investment expenses, audit charges, and transfers to the state deposit fund established by ch. 34. ~~Any balance lapsing from this allotment shall be credited to the appropriation under par. (v).~~

SECTION 19. 20.810 (1) (w) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 20. 20.822 (1) (u) of the statutes, relating to the TURNPIKE COMMISSION, is repealed and recreated to read:

20.822 (1) (u) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for carrying out the duties and functions of the commission. Expenditures shall be made upon vouchers signed by the chairman or secretary of the commission.

SECTION 21. 20.850 (1) (u) of the statutes, relating to the STATE BOARD OF VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AND ADULT EDUCATION, is amended to read:

20.850 (1) (u) All moneys ~~allocated to this program~~ *received from the state highway fund by the state superintendent of public instruction allocation made under s. 20.420 (4) (u)* to be distributed to local schools of vocational, technical and adult education *for operating driver training programs under ss. 40.71 (12) and 41.21 (1) (b) 1.*

SECTION 22. 20.890 (1) (u) of the statutes, relating to the WISCONSIN RETIREMENT FUND, is repealed and recreated to read:

20.890 (1) (u) *Administration.* From the moneys received by the Wisconsin retirement fund under ss. 66.90 to 66.9185, the amounts in the schedule for administration other than investment expenses, audit charges, or transfers to the state deposit fund established by ch. 34.

SECTION 23. 20.890 (1) (w) and (x) of the statutes are repealed.

SECTION 24. 27.01 (2r) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

27.01 (2r) (a) No person shall operate an automobile, motor truck, motor delivery wagon, bus, motorcycle, or other similar motor vehicle or trailer or semitrailer used in connection therewith in Council Grounds state forest or Point Beach state forest or in developed recreational areas in other state forests designated as such by the conservation commission or in any state park or roadside park except those specified in par. (b), unless such vehicle has affixed thereto an annual admission sticker or a daily admission tag as herein provided. No admission fees shall be charged from November 1 to March 31. Such annual stickers shall be issued by the commission and shall be valid for the calendar year for which issued. The daily admission tags shall be issued by the commission and shall state the date for which issued. The fee for the annual admis-

sion sticker shall be ~~\$2~~ \$3 for each vehicle. The fee for the daily admission tags shall be ~~50 cents~~ \$1 for all vehicles and shall be effective only for the date issued. Such annual admission sticker shall be affixed to the interior surface of the lower left-hand corner of the windshield of the vehicle and such daily admission tag shall be attached to the steering wheel or steering handlebar of such vehicle. All moneys collected for the sale of such annual admission stickers and daily admission tags shall be paid within one week into the state treasury, credited to the conservation fund, and be used for state park and state forest recreational areas only.

SECTION 26. 29.595 (2) (a) and (c) of the statutes are amended to read:

29.595 (2) (a) Any person claiming damage to property caused by deer or bear shall file a verified statement of his claim with the commission within 10 days from the time such damage is alleged to have been done. Such claim shall certify that the damage was caused on agricultural lands to growing crops, orchard trees, nursery stock, apiaries or to farm animals and poultry *or on silvicultural lands to trees grown for sale to or by Christmas tree dealers licensed under s. 134.60.* However, if the condition causing damage is in the nature of a continuing trespass, the claimant may, in lieu of a claim, file with the commission, within 10 days from the time such damage first occurs, a notice of claim, stating the nature of the condition and that damages will be claimed as soon as the total damage can be ascertained. In such case, the claimant is entitled to recover 80% of the total damages sustained during the continuance of the condition but not beyond 6 months after the date of the notice, provided he files a verified statement of his claim with the commission within 10 days after the abatement of the condition but not after 6 months of the date of the notice if the condition persists. No person shall be entitled to ~~damage~~ damages under this section who ~~shall have~~ has posted his lands against trespass or hunting.

(c) All claims for deer and bear damage shall be filed with the commission and 80% of such claims shall be paid ~~on a pro rata basis at the end of each fiscal year~~ from the funds provided ~~in an annual amount of \$40,000~~ for such purposes under s. 20.280 (1).

SECTION 27. 30.24 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

30.24 (2) Due to leakage in the Princeton dam, ~~a facility and the Montello dam, facilities~~ transferred by the federal government to this state pursuant to sub. (1), the level of the waters of the upper Fox river, in which ~~the dam is such dams are~~ located, is so lowered as to impair boating, fishing and hunting thereon and other recreational values, and also prevents this state from maintaining *and managing* water levels for the river as required by law and the conservation commission is directed to have the ~~dam~~ *dams renovated and* repaired and to this end shall apply to the regional director of the bureau of outdoor recreation, lake central region, for federal grant-in-aid for the project from the land and water conservation fund under P.L. 88-578 (78 Stat. 897), incorporating in the application a statement that the commission is directed by chapter 298, laws of 1965, *and chapter* , laws of 1967, (LRB-3316) to receive such funds, inclosing a certified copy of ~~said act such acts~~, and file a project proposal for the repair of ~~the each~~ dam, and certify a specified amount of money which is available to match federal grants-in-aid. If the proposed project is approved the commission shall proceed with the project and make necessary payments therefor from the appropriation made by s. 20.280 (1) *(un) and (2m) and (3) (x) and (y).*

SECTION 28. 36.245 of the statutes is amended to read:

36.245 ~~Funds~~ *Moneys* made available to the conservation commission, department of resource development and geological and natural

history survey of the university of Wisconsin, respectively, by ss. 20.280 (5) (1) (a), 20.706 (1) (b) and 20.830 (1) for a joint accelerated water resources research and data collection program shall be administered and co-ordinated by the director of the water resources center of the university of Wisconsin. No such funds shall be made available to any of the agencies specified until, on application from the state agency concerned, such director finds that such funds will be used for water resource investigations needed for the solution of existing or emerging water resource problems and that these investigations will wherever practical be co-ordinated with such investigations by other state or federal agencies and with research in progress or proposed under the sponsorship of the water resources center of the university of Wisconsin. The director shall make biennial reports thereon to the legislature at the convening thereof. In connection with his review of applications hereunder, the director of the water resources center shall seek the advice of the water subcommittee of the natural resources committee of state agencies.

SECTION 29. 38.24 (9) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

38.24 (9) (e) The board shall make such investigations of the mortality, disability, service and compensation experience of the several funds as ~~shall be~~ *are* necessary. On the basis of such investigation the board shall determine, adopt and certify the rates at which the annuities and other benefits shall be granted. The rates shall be adequate to provide for all benefits as near as may be at actual cost but shall not be less than the rates based on the minimum standard prescribed by law for granting annuities in this state. No revision of rates shall affect adversely the rights of any beneficiary or annuitant under an application made prior to the date when such revision becomes effective. *The board may order and make such distribution of any surplus which accrues in the annuity reserve funds as it deems equitable.*

SECTION 32. 46.03 (16) of the statutes is created to read:

46.03 (16) DRIVERS' EDUCATION. The department shall establish a drivers' education program in the Wisconsin school for boys, the Kettle Moraine boys school and the Wisconsin school for girls to provide drivers' education to inmates of such institutions who are about to become eligible to qualify for an operator's license.

SECTION 37. 66.916 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.916 (1) (a) The annuity payment surplus shall be determined as of the end of each year as the amount by which the reserve for annuities previously granted exceeds the actuarially determined liability with respect to such annuities. Whenever such surplus exceeds 25% or there is a deficiency exceeding 15% of such reserve, the tables used for the determination of annuities shall be revised in such manner as the board deems ~~appropriate~~ *equitable. The board may order and make such distribution of said annuity payment surplus as it deems equitable.*

SECTION 37m. 70.113 of the statutes is amended to read:

70.113 As soon after April 20 of each year as is feasible the conservation commission shall pay to the town treasurer the sum of 30 cents per acre as a grant out of the appropriation made by s. 20.280 (9) (vc) on each acre situated in the town of state forest lands, as defined in s. 28.02 (1), and state public shooting, trapping or fishing grounds and reserves or refuges operated thereon, acquired at any time under s. 23.09 (7) (d) 1 or 3, 29.10 (1943 Stats.), 29.571 (1) or from the appropriations made by s. 20.280 (1) (m), (2) (m) and (3) (m) by the conservation commission *or leased from the federal government by the conservation commission.*

SECTION 38. 71.14 (8) (c) of the statutes is renumbered 38.24 (9) (g) and amended to read:

38.24 (9) (g) ~~Beginning in 1958,~~ The board of trustees of said ~~teachers annuity and retirement fund~~ shall annually, prior to ~~August~~ *July* 15, estimate the amount of the payment to be made by the state to such fund during the fiscal year beginning on the next ~~September~~ *July* 1, to maintain the assets of the fund as provided in s. 38.24 (20). The board shall certify such estimate to the department of administration which shall prepare a warrant each month for one-twelfth of said estimated amount and upon such warrants the state treasurer shall transfer the sums specified therein to the teachers annuity and retirement fund from funds appropriated for that purpose. When the board has determined the exact amounts payable by the state to the fund for such fiscal year in accordance with s. 38.24 (20), a final certification thereof shall be made by said board to the department of administration and a final transfer shall be made to or from the fund, as determined from said final certification.

SECTION 39. 84.40 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

84.40 (4) All powers and duties conferred upon the commission pursuant to this section shall be exercised and performed by resolution of the commission. All conveyances, leases and subleases made pursuant to this section, when authorized pursuant to resolution of the commission, shall be made, executed and delivered in the name of the commission and signed by the secretary, or in his absence, the vice chairman.

SECTION 40. 84.41 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.41 (1) The state shall be liable for accrued rentals and for any other default under any lease or sublease executed under s. 84.40 and may be sued therefor on contract as in other contract actions pursuant to ch. 285, but it shall not be necessary for the lessor under any such lease or sublease or any assignee of such lessor or any person or other legal entity on behalf of such lessor to file any claim with the legislature prior to the commencement of any such action. *However, the corporation or bondholders may not re-enter or take possession of the highway land, easements or structures by reason of any default in the payment of rent or for any other reason.*

SECTION 40m. 194.12 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 42. 342.14 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

342.14 (2) For the original notation and subsequent release of each security interest noted upon a certificate of title, a single fee of \$1.50 by the owner of the vehicle. *This fee is exempt from s. 86.35.*

SECTION 43. The appropriation in section 20.280 (1) (g) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1967, is decreased by \$28,000 for the 1967-68 fiscal year and by \$28,000 for the 1968-69 fiscal year.

SECTION 44. The appropriation in section 20.280 (2) (g) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1967, is decreased by \$50,000 for the 1967-68 fiscal year and by \$50,000 for the 1968-69 fiscal year.

SECTION 45. The appropriation in section 20.280 (3) (k) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1967, is increased by \$203,000 for the 1967-68 fiscal year and by \$203,000 for the 1968-69 fiscal year.

SECTION 45g. The unencumbered balances in section 20.460 (1) (g), (h) and (i) of the statutes on June 30, 1967, shall be deposited to the credit of section 20.460 (1) (g), as created by chapter 43, laws of 1967.

SECTION 45m. The appropriation in section 20.703 (1) (g) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1967, is increased by \$125,030 for the 1967-68 fiscal year and by \$125,004 for the 1968-69 fiscal year.

SECTION 46. EFFECTIVE DATES. The repeal sections of this act shall take effect June 30, 1967. SECTION 42 shall be effective January 1, 1968. All other sections shall take effect July 1, 1967 except as otherwise specified.

Approved August 9, 1967.